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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 
STATE LAND OFFICE BUILDING 

SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 

2 December, 198 7 

EXAMIMER HEARING 

IN THE MATTER 

A p p l i c a t i o n of Dugan Production Cor- CASE 
po r a t i o n f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio 9252 
Ar r i b a County, New Mexico. 

BEFORE: Michael R. Stogner, Examiner 

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING 

A P P E A R A N C E S 

For the D i v i s i o n : J e f f Taylor 
Attorney a t Law 
Legal Counsel t o the D i v i s i o n 
State Land O f f i c e Bldg. 
Santa Fe, Nev/ Mexico 8 7501 

For Dugan Production: Robert G. S t o v a l l 
Attorney a t Law 
P. 0. Box 12 9 
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For Amoco Production: V?. Perry Pearce 
Attorney a t Law 
MONTGOMERY & ANDREWS 
P. 0. Box 23 0 7 
Santa Fe, New Mexico 8 7504 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

RICHARD CORCORAN 

Di r e c t Examination by h r . S t o v a l l 

Cross Examination by Mr. Stogner 

Redirect Examination by Mr. S t o v a l l 

Dugan E x h i b i t Seven, Correspondence 

Dugan E x h i b i t Eight, L i s t 
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MR. STOGNER: We'll c a l l next 

Case Number 9 2 52. 

MR. TAYLOR: The a p p l i c a t i o n of 

Dugan Production Corporation f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio Ar 

r i b a County, New Mexico. 

MR. STOGNER: This case was 

heard on November 4th, 1937, and was continued at t h a t time 

to t h i s hearing. 

We'll c a l l f o r apppearances. 

MR. STOVALL:: Robert G. Sto­

v a l l , Farmington, New Mexico, on behalf of the a p p l i c a n t , 

Dugan Production Corp. 

MR. STOGNER:: Any a d d i t i o n a l 

appearances ? 

MR. PEARCE: Mr. Examiner, I am 

W. Perry Pearce. again appearing representing Amoco Produc­

t i o n Company. 

Our appearance i n t h i s matter 

was entered i n the previous hearing and we'd l i k e the record 

to continue to r e f l e c t our appearance. 

MR. STOGNER: The record w i l l 

so show. 

MR. PEARCE: Thank you, Mr. 

Examiner. 
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MR. STOGNER: Mr. St o v a l l ? 

MR. STOVALL: I have one w i t ­

ness and as t h i s i s a continued hearing, he i s s t i l l under 

oath, I b e l i e v e , w i t h respect to swearing him i n l a s t time 

and he's s t i l l q u a l i f i e d , I assume. 

MR. STOGNER: For the record, 

please i d e n t i f y your witness. 

MR. STOVALL: The witness i s 

Mr. Rich or Richard Corcoran. 

MR. STOGNER: Let the record 

show t h a t Mr. Corcoran was sworn i n at the November 4th, 

1987 hearing. 

Please continue, Mr. S t o v a l l . 

RICHARD CORCORAN, 

being r e c a l l e d as a witness and being duly sworn upon h i s 

oath, and remaining under oath, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s , t o -

wi t : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

C Mr. Corcoran, a t the November 4th hearing 

you presented c e r t a i n evidence w i t h respect to land owner­

ship and p a r t i e s who have an i n t e r e s t i n the 640-acre spac-
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ing u n i t sought to be pooled by Dugan Production Corp., i s 

t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And a t t h a t hearing c e r t a i n i n f o r m a t i o n 

became known to you which you d i d not p r e v i o u s l y know, which 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t c e r t a i n p a r t i e s who would be e n t i t l e d t o 

n o t i c e and should be o f f e r e d the o p p o r t u n i t y to j o i n , had 

not been so n o t i f i e d , i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And who were those p a r t i e s who were --

who you have subsequently as a r e s u l t of t h a t hearing, or 

subsequent to t h a t date, i d e n t i f i e d as p a r t i e s e n t i t l e d t o 

n o t i c e of the forced pooling a p p l i c a t i o n ? 

A They are Peter C. Neumann, Venada Nation­

a l , Johansen Energy Partnership, Amoco Production, and A. G. 

H i l l . 

Q A l l r i g h t , and do you know from whom 

Johansen Energy, Peter Neumann, and Venada National derived 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t ? 

A Yes, they derived t h e i r i n t e r e s t from 

Mesa Grande Resources, Incorporated. 

Q And was Mesa Grande Resources advised of 

t h i s hearing and given n o t i c e p r i o r t o the November 4th 

hearing? 

A Yes, they were. 
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C And what i s — do you know where Amoco 

Production's i n t e r e s t i s derived or what type of i n t e r e s t 

they have? 

A Yes, t h e i r s i s derived from a lease from 

a Mr. Rucklehaus t h a t they are the — t h a t was assigned t o 

Amoco. 

Q So they are a lessee or working i n t e r e s t 

owner i n the --

A Yes, they are. 

Q - - pool, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And have you given them n o t i c e of t h i s 

hearing ? 

A We have. 

Q And what i s the i n t e r e s t -- you've iden­

t i f i e d A. G. H i l l as having an i n t e r e s t . What — what i s 

the nature of t h e i r i n t e r e s t ? 

A Their i n t e r e s t was a mineral i n t e r e s t 

which they owned o u t r i g h t and they have subsequently leasedd 

t h a t i n t e r e s t to Sun E x p l o r a t i o n & Production; however, t h a t 

-- t h a t lease i s not of record y e t . 

Q Now a l l of the — a l l of the p a r t i e s whom 

you've i d e n t i f i e d as being a d d i t i o n a l p a r t i e s who are e n t i t ­

led to n o t i c e , you've given them a l l n o t i c e of the — 

A Yes. 
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Q — hearing? 

A Yes, we have. 

Q And I'd ask you now t o t u r n to E x h i b i t 

Number Seven, and i d e n t i f y i t , please. 

A E x h i b i t Number Seven i s a copy of the 

l e t t e r s t h a t sent to each of the p a r t i e s who were n o t i c e d , 

along w i t h a copy of the r e t u r n r e c e i p t s i g n i f y i n g t h a t they 

received the l e t t e r s . 

Q Okay, so i n each of these cases you sent 

them a l e t t e r a a v i s i n g them of your i n t e n t to d r i l l a w e l l , 

o f f e r i n g them t.he o p p o r t u n i t y to j o i n and enclosing a copy 

of the a p p l i c a t i o n and thereby n o t i f y i n g them of the forced 

pooling a p p l i c a t i o n , i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q I'd ask you now to t u r n to E x h i b i t Number 

Eight and i d e n t i f y i t , please. 

A E x h i b i t Number Eight i s a — i t ' s a r e ­

vised working i n t e r e s t t a b u l a t i o n i n c l u d i n g those p a r t i e s 

who were not included i n our o r i g i n a l request. 

Q And i t was a r e v i s i o n of the t a b u l a t i o n 

p r e v i o u s l y o f f e r e d as an e x h i b i t i n t h i s case, i s t h a t cor­

rect? 

A That's r i g h t , yes, and i t also sets out 

the p a r t i e s who have executed the operating agreement or the 

AFE, or both. 
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Q Mow i s t h i s t a b u l a t i o n based upon addi­

t i o n a l research which you have done or caused to be done --

A Yes, i t i s . 

Q -- w i t h respect t o t h i s (not c l e a r l y un­

derstood)? And what does t h a t , what does t h a t research i n ­

clude? 

A The a d d i t i o n a l research includes updating 

our t i t l e o p inion t h a t we had covering the southeast quarter 

of t h i s s e c t i o n , which covers t h a t i n t e r e s t t h a t was i n 

question as to Amoco's and what shows here as Sun, which was 

A. G. H i l l ' s . 

Further, i t -- we — i n a d d i t i o n to t h a t , 

we -- I have reviewed the Federal records as t o Mesa -- as 

to the i n t e r e s t t h a t Mesa assigned out and — 

Q Again you're r e f e r r i n g t o Mesa Grande Re­

sources, i s that, c o r r e c t ? 

A Mesa Grande Resources assigned out and 

thereby covering Neumann, Peter C. Neumann, Venada, Venada 

N a t i o n a l , and Johansen Energy's i n t e r e s t s . 

Q And are you s a t i s f i e d t h a t you've now 

made a cmplete and thorough search of the records and t h a t 

you have i d e n t i f i e d everyone who has an i n t e r e s t and i s 

e n t i t l e d to notice? 

A I am s a t i s f i e d . 

Q Were E x h i b i t s Number Seven and Eight 
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A Yes, they were. 

MR. STOVALL: I would o f f e r Ex­

h i b i t s Number Seven and Eight i n t o evidence a t t h i s time. 

MR. STOGNER: Are there any ob­

je c t ions ? 

MR. PEARCE: No o b j e c t i o n . 

MR. STOGNER: Dugan Production 

E x h i b i t s Seven and Eight w i l l be admitted i n t o evidence a t 

t h i s time. 

MR. STOVALL:: And I have no­

t h i n g f u r t h e r . 

MR. STOGNER:: Thank you, Mr. 

Stoval1 . 

Mr. Pearce? 

MR. PEARCE: No questions, Mr. 

Examiner. Thank you. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOGNER: 

Q Mr. Corcoran, do you have any w r i t t e n r e ­

sponse to any of these l e t t e r s on f i l e ? 

A I have --

Q When I say these l e t t e r s I'm r e f e r r i n g t o 

E x h i b i t Number Seven. 
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A Okay, yes, from Venada we have a w r i t t e n 

response and from Johansen we have an executed AFE and 

th a t ' s — t h a t ' s i t . 

Q Okay, subsequent t o the hearing would you 

make a copy of i t and w e ' l l include t h a t i n the record of 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case? 

A Right. 

MR. STOGNER: Are there any 

other questions of Mr. Corcoran? 

MR. STOVALL: One — one quick 

question I overlooked e a r l i e r . 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

Q Again you've i d e n t i f i e d Northwest 

P i p e l i n e Corporation as having received n o t i c e . W i l l you 

sta t e the nature of t h e i r i n t e r e s t , please? 

A That -- t h a t — the reason f o r t h a t was 

th a t they had a o v e r r i d i n g r o y a l t y i n t e r e s t t h a t a t some 

f u t u r e p o i n t could convert t o a working i n t e r e s t and I j u s t 

wanted to make them aware t h a t the — t h a t we were proposing 

t o d r i l l a w e l l and t h a t i t may a f f e c t t h e i r — t h e i r 

i n t e r e s t i n the f u t u r e . 

MR. STOVALL: Nothing f u r t h e r , 

Mr. Examiner. 
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MR. STOGNER: I f there are no 

f u r t h e r questions, he may be excused. 

Mr. Pearce, do you have any 

cl o s i n g statement? 

MR. PEARCE: No, Mr. Examiner, 

thank you. 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. S t o v a l l ? 

MR. STOVALL: I ' l l j u s t r e s t a t e 

my c l o s i n g statement made on November 4th.. 

MR. STOGNER: Thank you. I f 

there's nothing f u r t h e r i n Case Number 9252, i t w i l l be 

taken under advisement. 

(Kearing concluded.) 
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I , SALLY W. BOYD, C.S.R., DO HEREBY 

CERTIFY t h a t trie foregoing T r a n s c r i p t of Hearing before the 

C i l Conservation D i v i s i o n (Commission) was reported by me; 

that the said t r a n s c r i p t i s a f u l l , t r u e , and c o r r e c t record 

of the hearing, prepared by me to the best of my a b i l i t y . 
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO 
ENERGY, MINERALS, AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

OIL CONSERVATION DIVISION 
STATE LAND OFFICE BLDG. 
SANTA FE, NEW MEXICO 

4 November 1987 

IN THE MATTER OF: 
A p p l i c a t i o n of Dugan Production Cor- CASE 
po r a t i o n f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio 9252 
A r r i b a County, New Mexico. 

BEFORE: Michael E. Stogner, Examiner 

TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING 
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For the D i v i s i o n : J e f f Taylor 
Attorney a t Law 
Legal Counsel t o the D i v i s i o n 
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For Dugan Production: Robert G. S t o v a l l 
Attorney a t Law 
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MR. STOGNER: C a l l next Case 

Number 9252. 

MR. TAYLOR: A p p l i c a t i o n of 

Dugan Production Corporation f o r compulsory p o o l i n g , Rio Ar­

r i b a County, New Mexico. 

MR. STOGNER: Are there appear­

ances i n t h i s case? 

MR. STOVALL: Robert G. S t o v a l l , 

Farmington, appearing on behalf of Dugan Production Corpora­

t i o n . 

MR. PEARCE: May i t please the 

Examiner, I am W. Perry Pearce, w i t h the law f i r m Montgomery 

& Andrews of Santa Fe, appearing on behalf of Amoco Produc­

t i o n Corporation. 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. S t o v a l l , do 

you have any witnesses? 

MR. STOVALL: I have the same 

two witnesses as appeared i n the previous case. 

MR. STOGNER: Let the record so 

show t h a t the l a s t two witnesses were sworn, however I wish 

to have you to r e q u a l i f y them again f o r Mr. Pearce's bene­

f i t . 

MR. PEARCE: I ' l l s t i p u l a t e the 

witnesses are q u a l i f i e d as a landman and a petroleum engine-
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er, r e s p e c t i v e l y , Mr. Examiner. 

MR. STOGNER: Let the record so 

show, since there i s no o b j e c t i o n t h a t they've been — since 

they've been p r e v i o u s l y q u a l i f i e d . 

Mr. S t o v a l l . 

RICHARD CORCORAN, 

being c a l l e d as a witness who has been p r e v i o u s l y sworn and 

remains under oath, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s , t o - w i t : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

Q Mr. Corcoran, I ' l l c a l l you f i r s t . Would 

you j u s t s t a t e your name f o r the record, please? 

A Richard Corcoran. 

Q And i t ' s been s t i p u l a t e d your q u a l i f i c a ­

t i o n s have been set f o r t h i n Case 9251. You've been accep­

ted. I w i l l ask you, however, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the ap-

p l i c a i t o n i n t h i s case and w i t h the i n f o r m a t i o n about which 

you are t o t e s t i f y ? 

A I am. 

Q I'd ask you t o t u r n to E x h i b i t Number One 

and i d e n t i f y t h a t e x h i b i t , please. 

A This i s a map covering Townships 25 and 

26 North, Range 2 West. I d e n t i f i e d on the map are several 
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t h i n g s , one being a s o l i d orange o u t l i n e d e p i c t i n g the cur­

r e n t Gavilan Mancos Pool boundary; also a dashed orange out­

l i n e showin the proposed extension to the Gavilan Mancos 

Pool. 

I n blue, an o u t l i n e covering our proposed 

w e l l spacing u n i t ; several black dots showing e x i s t i n g pro­

ducing o i l and gas w e l l s from t h i s — t h i s zone. 

Q And what about the hachured shaded areas? 

A That depicts i n t e r e s t i n which Dugan Pro­

du c t i o n Corporation has some, some i n t e r e s t . 

Q Thank you. Would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 

Number Two, please, and i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Examiner? 

A E x h i b i t Number Two i s a copy of the C-102 

attached t o the a p p l i c a t i o n f o r permit t o d r i l l f o r the 

Bridge Com No. 1 Well. I t i d e n t i f i e s the w e l l l o c a t i o n as 

surveyed, and the leasehold ownership as i t was known t o Du­

gan Production Corporation at the time the APD was submitted 

to the BLM. 

Q Thank you. Would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 

Number Three, please? 

A E x h i b i t Number Three i s — contains 

several pages, ten pages, and i t ' s a — i t includes a p r o t o ­

type l e t t e r o f f e r i n g the o p p o r t u n i t y to j o i n and a d v i s i n g 

w i t h o u t the j o i n d e r Dugan Production Corporation would 

would proceed w i t h forced p o o l i n g hearings. 
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Q A l l r i g h t , and i n t h a t e x h i b i t i s there 

more than one n o t i c e or l e t t e r to --

A There are two n o t i c e s , the f i r s t being i n 

July of 1987 and the second on September the 16th, 1987. 

They — each of these notices went t o a — t o the working 

i n t e r e s t owners i d e n t i f i e d on the d i s t r i b u t i o n l i s t . 

The n o t i c e , the people i d e n t i f i e d on 

these d i s t r i b u t i o n l i s t s change and the l a t e s t , the one 

dated September 16th, 1987, included a l l those p a r t i e s on 

the f i r s t l i s t plus Robert Bayless and Huntington T. Walker. 

I t f u r t h e r omitted David S c h a f f n i t . 

Q I'm s o r r y , d i d David S c h a f f n i t — i s he 

on the f i r s t ? 

A He's on the f i r s t l i s t . I'm s o r r y , he's 

not on the f i r s t l i s t . I'm looking a t the f i r s t case. 

Q S t r i k e t h i s . There's a remarkable s i m i ­

l a r i t y between these cases but I would l i k e t o s t r i k e the 

reference to David S c h a f f n i t . 

A Okay, excuse me. 

MR. STOGNER: Let the record 

show t h a t . 

Q So the second l e t t e r , the September 16th 

l e t t e r was d i s t r i b u t e d t o a l l those people i d e n t i f i e d as 

being — as having received the J u l y 31st l e t t e r --

A Plus — 
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Q — w i t h the a d d i t i o n c f Bayless, Walker, 

and Kindermac Partners, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q And included w i t h t h a t l e t t e r was what 

information? 

A Was o f f e r i n g the o p p o r t u n i t y t o j o i n and 

advising w i t h o u t t h e i r j o i n d e r we would proceed w i t h forced 

pooling procedures. 

Q And i n — d i d you also include an Author­

i z a t i o n f o r Expenditure showing the estimated w e l l costs? 

A Yes, we d i d . 

Q I'd ask you now t o t u r n to E x h i b i t Number 

Four and i d e n t i f y t h a t , please. 

A E x h i b i t Number Four i s — consists of 

several pages, the f i r s t being a l i s t of the people i t was 

sent t o . The next are r e t u r n r e c e i p t s showing t h a t these 

f o l k s received t h i s l e t t e r , and the l a s t page i s — or l a s t 

two pages — w e l l , the l a s t page i s a l e t t e r sent by our a t ­

torney, Mr. S t o v a l l , to the people involved g i v i n g them not­

ice of Dugan's a p p l i c a t i o n f o r forced p o o l i n g . 

Q And are the i n t e r e s t owners there i d e n t i ­

f i e d the same as the i n t e r e s t owners i d e n t i f i e d i n your Ex­

h i b i t Number Three September 16th l e t t e r ? 

A They are. 

Q I n determining these ownership l i s t s and 
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i n determining who was e n t i t l e d to n o t i c e , would you please 

t e l l the Examiner what steps you took? 

A Okay. We f i r s t h i r e d a c o n t r a c t landman 

to research the records of the county. He fu r n i s h e d us a 

l i s t of a l l the instruments a f f e c t i n g t i t l e t o the lands as 

l i s t e d on the t r a c t index i n the a b s t r a c t o f f i c e . 

He f u r t h e r reviewed certan documents and 

concluded what the ownership was as he saw i t f o r the (un­

cl e a r ) p r o perty. 

Further t o t h a t , I t a l k e d t o another 

operator who allowed me t o make a copy of a l l the leases and 

other documents t h a t they had a t t h e i r d i s p o s a l , which were 

common to t h i s — to these lands. 

Further they had a D i v i s i o n order t i t l e 

o p i nion t h a t covered common i n t e r e s t up and — t h a t covered 

common i n t e r e s t . 

A f t e r reviewing the documents my f i n d i n g s 

b a s i c a l l y p a r a l l e l e d the broker's. 

I also reviewed Federal a b s t r a c t t a k e o f f s 

and our f i l e s covering the lands i n v o l v e d . 

Q A l l r i g h t . Now w i t h respect t o the work 

done by the c o n t r a c t landman, t h a t was p r i m a r i l y o r i e n t e d 

towards Tract No. 4, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And w i t h respect to the lease which i s 
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shown owned l a r g e l y by Mountain States Natural Gas, Kinder­

mac Partners, Huntington Walker and Robert Bayless. 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q With -- w i t h respect t o Tract No. 1, and 

I'm r e f e r r i n g , excuse me here, t o E x h i b i t Two, w i t h respect 

to Tract No. 1, t h a t e x h i b i t i n d i c a t e s t h a t i t i s a fee 

lease owned by Dugan Production 100 percent, i s t h a t cor­

re c t ? 

A Yes. 

Q And does Dugan Production Corp's lease on 

t h a t t r a c t provide f o r pool i n g 640 acres? 

A I t does. 

Q A l l r i g h t . With respect t o Tract No. 2, 

you are showing i n t e r e s t owned on E x h i b i t Number Two by 

Dugan Production Corp. and by Sun E x p l o r a t i o n . I t appears 

to be a common lease, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A I t i s a common lease. 

Q I s i t — a l l r i g h t , and i t has the same 

lessors i n t h a t lease? 

A No. I'm s o r r y , no, i t doesn't. 

Q Okay. Dugan Production has got 100 per­

cent of a lease from a person t h a t owns a 37-1/2 percent i n ­

t e r e s t i n the minerals, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's r i g h t . 

Q And Sun E x p l o r a t i o n has 62-1/2 percent 
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from — 

A What's — 

Q Has a -- has a lease from owners t h a t own 

62-1/2 percent of the mineral i n t e r e s t , i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A I t has come t o my a t t e n t i o n t h a t p a r t of 

what I'm showing here as Sun's i n t e r e s t i s not owned by Sun. 

Q And what — do you have any idea what 

p o r t i o n of t h a t i n t e r e s t i s not owned by Sun and — 

A Yes, I do. I t ' s — 1.25 percent i s under 

lease t o Amoco and then the — or 1.25 percent of the 

spacing u n i t i s under lease, which — t o Amoco, and f u r t h e r , 

an i n t e r e s t , 3.25 percent i s owned by A. G. H i l l , who — 

Q Let -- l e t me — d i d you give n o t i c e t o 

Amoco Production? I t i s Amoco Production, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q Of t h i s hearing? 

A Not u n t i l — no, not — we d i d v e r b a l l y 

and then by w r i t t e n l e t t e r but j u s t r e c e n t l y . 

Q And Amoco, l e t the record r e f l e c t , as i t 

does, t h a t Amoco has entered an appearance i n t h i s matter; 

t h a t i t has act u a l n o t i c e . 

With respect t o the A. G. H i l l i n t e r e s t , 

d i d you give p r i o r w r i t t e n n o t i c e t o A. G, H i l l w i t h respect 

to t h i s case? 

A Again not, not u n t i l j u s t r e c e n t l y . 
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Q And have you had any discussions w i t h A. 

G. H i l l regarding t h i s case p r i o r t o today? 

A Yes. They had discussions regarding t h i s 

— t h i s p a r t i c u l a r i n t e r e s t and they advised t h a t they were 

i n the process of r e - l e a s i n g i t t o Sun and Sun — my conver­

sations w i t h Sun, also they i n d i c a t e d t h a t they were i n 

agreement. I t ' s j u s t the paper has not been exchanged y e t . 

Q Now when you're saying t h a t A. G. H i l l i s 

i n the process of re-le a s e i n g i t , by t h a t I assume you mean 

leasing again. 

A Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q To Sun. Do I i n f e r c o r r e c t l y from t h a t , 

t h a t t h a t acreage i s owned i n fee by A. G. H i l l r e l a t e d i n ­

t e r e s t s ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And t h a t i t was under a lease to Sun Ex­

p l o r a t i o n ? 

A I t was under lease and then the lease ex­

p i r e d . 

Q Do you happen t o know when the lease ex­

pired? 

A No, I'm not — I don't have i t here. 

Q But to the best of your knowledge Sun and 

A. G. H i l l are discussing --

A They're f u r t h e r than discussing. They — 
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they b a s i c a l l y have agreed but they have some minor p o i n t s 

t h a t they want t o c l e a r up before they — before they exe­

cute the agreement. 

Q Have you examined a l l of these fee leases 

i n Tracts 1, 2, and 4, t h a t e x i s t , and obviously we're not 

t a l k i n g about the expired leases, but the leases t h a t e x i s t , 

to determine whether or not they allow f o r pooling on 160 

acres ? 

A I have reviewed documents regarding t h i s . 

On 2 I had to review a t i t l e o p i n i o n , which provided me w i t h 

t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n . 

Q And are there any leases which do not 

provide or give the operator or lessee the r i g h t t o pool — 

A There are — 

Q — on 640 acres? 

A There are two, Leota Jone and Annie 

White. There are two leases i n Tract No. 1, or I'm s o r r y , 

Tract No. 4, t h a t do not provide the r i g h t t o pool 640-acre 

spacing. 

Q And who are the lessor or fee, fee min­

e r a l owners i n that? 

A They are Leota Jones and Annie White and 

Annie White's i n t e r e s t now i s being spoken f o r by the — by 

her e s t a t e , by the personal r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of her e s t a t e . 

Q Annie White i s deceased, then, i s what 
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you're saying? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And her estate i s c u r r e n t l y i n probate t o 

the best of your knowledge? 

A That's r i g h t . 

Q And are those mineral i n t e r e s t s under 

lease? 

A They are under lease t o Robert Bayless. 

Q And have you provided the mineral i n t e r ­

est owners w i t h n o t i c e of t h i s hearing? 

A We — we have, and t h a t i s set out on Ex­

h i b i t Five. 

Q Would you i d e n t i f y E x h i b i t Five — Exhi­

b i t Number Five, please? 

A I sure w i l l . I t i s a — consists of two 

pages, the f i r s t being the r e t u r n r e c e i p t s evidencing t h a t 

the p a r t i e s t h a t t h i s l e t t e r was sent to received i t ; the 

second page being the l e t t e r a d v i s i n g — a d v i s i n g the par­

t i e s involved t h a t — of our — of our forced p o o l i n g a p p l i ­

c a t i o n . 

Q And Mrs. Leota Jones i s i d e n t i f i e d as one 

of the r e c i p i e n t s on the f i r s t page of E x h i b i t Five and she 

i s the mineral i n t e r e s t owner and lessor of the lease t o Mr. 

Bayless, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's — yes, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 
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Q And do you know who Mrs. E r i n Schaefer 

is? 

A That's the personal r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the 

estate of — of Annie White. 

Q And have you had any discussions w i t h Mr. 

Bayless regarding these — these mineral i n t e r e s t s and the 

leases and the f a c t they do not contain a pool i n g clause? 

A Yes, we — I have and advised them of 

t h a t and he t o l d me t h a t he would be p a r t i c i p a t i n g f o r t h e i r 

p r o p o r t i o n a t e share of --

Q Did he i n d i c a t e whether or not he would e 

able t o e i t h e r amend the lease or take a new lease, or do 

something to allow p o o l i n g on 640 acres? 

A He said he would handle t h a t . 

Q And do you know, do you have any personal 

knowledge of whether e i t h e r of these lessors i s r e l a t e d t o 

Mr. Bayless i n any way? 

A Yes, they are. They are in-laws, the one 

being the mother-in-law and — 

Q Which one i s that? 

A Leota Jones, and I'm not sure e x a c t l y 

what the -- what Annie White's r e l a t i o n s h i p i s but there i s 

a r e l a t i o n s h i p . 

Q Thank you. Looking again at E x h i b i t Num­

ber Two, Tract No. 3, are you aware of any — any i n t e r e s t s 
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i n Tract No. 3 which have not received n o t i c e of t h i s hear­

ing? 

A Yes, I am. As I t r i e d t o p o i n t out ear­

l i e r , Amoco and A. G. H i l l d i d not — 

Q Excuse me, no, we're looking a t Tract No. 

3 now. 

A Oh, I'm s o r r y . Yes, Mesa Grande Resour­

ces and Dugan Production; Mesa Grande has several co-owners 

i n t h e i r 75 percent and they — i t ' s my understanding they 

have -- he has co-owners and t h a t we d i d not n o t i c e them. 

Q A l l r i g h t . Thank you. Let me make sure 

I'm r e a l l y through. 

MR. STOVALL: I have no f u r t h e r 

witness — questions of t h i s witness, Mr. Examiner. 

MR. STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. 

Sto v a l 1 . 

Mr. Pearce, your witness. 

MR. PEARCE: One, and I t h i n k 

very b r i e f l y . 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. PEARCE: 

Q Mr. Corcoran, who was the c o n t r a c t land­

man on t h i s job? 

A His name i s Claude Kennedy. 
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MR. STOVALL: For your 

i n f o r m a t i o n , Mr. Pearce, he's out of Albuquerque. He's an 

independent landman out of Albuquerque. 

Q I can obviously f i n d t h i s out from ray 

c l i e n t . Who leased the 1.25 percent of the 640 to Amoco? Do 

you know? 

A Let me t h i n k f o r a second and I may be 

able to answer i t . 

Oh, Rucklehaus. 

Q Melvin? 

A Melvin T. That's c o r r e c t . 

MR. PEARCE: No f u r t h e r 

questions of t h i s witness. Thank you, Mr. Examiner. 

MR. STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. 

Pearce. 

Mr. S t o v a l l , do you have any 

f u r t h e r questions? 

MR. STOVALL: No f u r t h e r 

questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOGNER: 

Q I'm s t i l l a l i t t l e b i t confused on my 

numbers here, Mr. Corcoran. 

A Yes. 
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A. G. H i l l owns, as I understand i t , 3.25 

percent i n t e r e s t i n the 640? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q Now, i s t h a t a d i v i d e d i n t e r e s t 

throughout or j u s t only i n Tract 2? 

A I t ' s only i n Tract 2. 

Q So whatever i t comes out, i t ' s 3.25 of 

the 640. 

A That's r i g h t . That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And the 1.25 percent of Amoco's i n t e r e s t 

i s out of Tract 2 --

A Yes. 

Q — and i t comes out to 1.25 percent of 

the 640. 

A Yes, t h a t ' s c o r r e c t . 

Q Okay. Now, I do not see A. G. H i l l ' s or 

Amoco Production's name appearing on any of the m a i l i n g 

l i s t s , i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That i s c o r r e c t . 

Q Okay. What ki n d o f , again, what kind of 

communications have you had w i t h them? 

A I had verbal communication concerning 

t h i s i n t e r e s t . 

Q When? 

A Monday. 
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Q That's the only communications you've had 

w i t h them? 

A I have also w r i t t e n them a l e t t e r sent 

yesterday a d v i s i n g them of the s i t u a t i o n . 

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Examiner, I , 

j u s t to help you w i t h what obviously appears t o be concer­

ning you, Dugan Production i s going ot request a continuance 

i n t h i s matter. We bel i e v e t h a t the problem w i t h respect t o 

not i c e of Amoco i s solved by the appearance of Mr. Pearce. 

That c o n s t i t u t e s an e f f e c t i v e waiver of n o t i c e , but w i t h r e ­

spect to the A. G. H i l l i n t e r e s t , i t ' s our understanding 

t h a t they and Sun E x p l o r a t i o n are n e g o t i a t i n g a new lease 

and t h a t Sun w i l l commit t h a t i n t e r e s t t o the w e l l a t t h a t 

time. 

But we w i l l request a c o n t i n u ­

ance i n t h i s case f o r two weeks t o allow t h a t n o t i c e and 

then i f they wish to — t o come i n and p a r t i c i p a t e i n the 

case, to give them the o p p o r t u n i t y t o do so, but we be l i e v e 

t h a t i n t e r e s t w i l l l i k e l y be j o i n e d i n the w e l l and a con­

tinuance w i l l not be necessary. 

MR. STOGNER: Okay, and how — 

what kind of a continuance are you seeking? 

MR. STOVALL:: We're going t o 

request i t to the next hearing date, which I b e l i e v e would 

be the 18th. 
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MR. STOGNER: Okay. Now as f a r 

as the n o t i c e , t h a t may or may not be tr u e about the waiving 

n o t i c e but there i s a p o l i c y t h a t compulsory p o o l i n g i s the 

l a s t d i t c h e f f o r t i n t r y i n g t o reach v o l u n t a r y agreement. 

MR. STOVALL: Well, may I ask 

Mr. Corcoran a question or two w i t h respect to the Amoco i n ­

t e r e s t ? 

MR. STOGNER: Okay, t h a t w i l l 

be f i n e . 

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Corcoran, 

have you had — you've i n d i c a t e d t h a t you have had some d i s ­

cussions w i t h Amoco Production, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

MR. STOVALL: Has Amoco i n d i ­

cated t o you a w i l l i n g n e s s to e i t h e r j o i n i n the w e l l or — 

A Yes. 

MR. STOVALL: — somehow — 

A They have advised me "hat they w i l l not 

be force pooled. They w i l l e i t h e r j o i n or make us a trade 

of some s o r t . 

MR. STOVALL: Trade some 

i n t e r e s t or somehow allow Dugan t o acquire the i n t e r e s t of 

Amoco — 

A That's r i g h t . 
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Q — i n t h e r e . 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And i t would be your a n t i c i p a t i o n , then, 

t h a t Amoco would not be a f f e c t e d by t h i s forced p o o l i n g 

order. 

A I a n t i c i p a t e t h e y ' l l do as they s a i d , 

t h a t t h e y ' l l e i t h e r j o i n or they w i l l trade us. 

MR. PEARCE: May I jump back 

i n t o t h i s , Mr. Examiner? 

MR. STOGNER: Please do, Mr. 

Pearce. 

MR. PEARCE: Mr. Corcoran, I 

d i d n ' t understand your answer t o Mr. S t o v a l l ' s question j u s t 

now. 

A Okay. 

MR. PEARCE: I n the present 

posture of t h i s case do you seek the pooling of the 1.25 

percent i n t e r e s t i n the 640 held by Amoco Production 

Company? 

A Yes, s i r . 

Q Okay, l e t ' s t u r n t o Mesa Grande 

Resources. As I understand i t , they were — they d i d 

receive n o t i c e . 

A Mesa Grande Resources d i d , yes. 

Q Okay, how about Mountain States? 
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A Yes. 

Q And a l l theother i n t e r e s t e d p a r t i e s t h a t 

- other than the two t h a t we were j u s t discussing. 

A That's r i g h t . 

Q Okay. 

A Now, now, the i n v e s t o r s f o r Mesa Grande 

d i d not receive n o t i c e , or c e r t a i n i n v e s t o r s , c e r t a i n other 

people. 

MR. STOVALL: I have another 

witness who w i l l present a d d i t i o n a l testimony on t h a t mat­

t e r , Mr. Examiner. 

Q Okay, now as f a r as Mesa Grande Resources 

i s the ac t u a l mineral i n t e r e s t and other i n t e r e s t owners 

that he may have, do they a c t u a l l y own mineral i n t e r e s t s or 

do they have a cooperation between themselves? I don't 

q u i t e understand t h a t . 

A Well, apparently they do a c t u a l l y own an 

i n t e r e s t . 

Q And who i s that ? 

A I do not have those names w i t h me. 

Q Okay. 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. S t o v a l l , I'm 

going to request t h a t we continue t h i s f o r another two weeks 

i n a d d i t i o n t o the November 18th. A f t e r a l l , even the Nov­

ember 18th w i l l not s a t i s f y the 21 day w r i t t e n requirement. 
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MR. STOVALL: W e l l , t h a t w o u l d 

be ~ 

MR. STOGNER: And there again, 

l a s t d i t c h e f f o r t — 

MR. STOVALL: Well, Mr. Exam­

i n e r , w i t h respect t o deal w i t h the Amoco - H i l l i n t e r e s t s , 

we — I'd be w i l l i n g t o do t h a t , to give the f u l l 21-day no­

t i c e , and we would a n t i c i p a t e t h a t those i n t e r e s t s would be 

— would be resolved. I mean i t ' s Dugan's a n t i c i p a t i o n t h a t 

those i n t e r e s t s w i l l be brought i n t o the w e l l v o l u n t a r i l y 

and — and w i l l not be force pooled i n t o the w e l l ; recogniz­

ing t h a t the order w i l l give some time f o r people to j o i n i n 

the w e l l a f t e r the issuance of the order. 

And w i t h respect to the Mesa 

Grande, the i n t e r e s t derived through Mesa Grande, we'd l i k e 

t o present a d d i t i o n a l testimony on t h a t through Mr. Roe. 

MR. STOGNER: Okay, then w e ' l l 

discuss the continuance a l i t t l e b i t l a t e r . 

Are there any other questions 

of t h i s witness? 

MR. PEARCE: Not now, Mr. 

Examiner. 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. S t o v a l l ? 

MR. STOVALL: No, I have none. 

MR. STOGNER: You may continue. 
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MR. STOVALL: I'd l i k e t o c a l l 

Mr. Roe a t t h i s time. 

JOHN ROE, 

being c a l l e d as a witness who has been p r e v i o u s l y sworn and 

remains under oath, t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s , t o - w i t : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

Q Mr. Roe, again you've been s t i p u l a t e d t o 

and q u a l i f i e d as a witness i n t h i s case but I would l i k e t o 

ask you f o r the record are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the a p p l i c a t i o n 

i n t h i s case and the matters about which you are about t o 

t e s t i f y and the e x h i b i t s t h a t have been prepared? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q A l l r i g h t . Mr. Roe, l e t ' s address f i r s t 

the question of the i n t e r e s t s which have been derived 

I ' l l r e f e r to them as having been derived — through Mesa 

Grande Resources. Have you had any conversations w i t h Mesa 

Grande Resources w i t h respect t o any i n t e r e s t s which may 

have come out of t h e i r 75 percent i n t e r e s t i n Tract No. 3? 

A Yes. I have had conversations w i t h Greg 

P h i l l i p s of Mesa Grande Resources. 

Q And could you b r i e f l y describe the nature 

of t h a t conversation or those conversations? 
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A Yes. P r i o r t o our d i s t r i b u t i n g the i n i ­

t i a l proposal to d r i l l t h i s w e l l , the AFE t h a t we were sen­

ding to the working i n t e r e s t owners, which i s p a r t of what 

we have as E x h i b i t Number Three, and t h i s l e t t e r t h a t t r a n s ­

m i t t e d the AFE, dated July 16th, which i s also p a r t of Exhi­

b i t Number Three, i t would be the l a s t page, t h a t the l e t t e r 

t h a t we sent i n i t i a l l y t o what we believed t o be the working 

i n t e r e s t ownership w i t h i n Section 28 of Township 26 North, 

Range 2 West, p r i o r to sending t h a t l e t t e r out on July 31st, 

1987, I had made or by phone had contacted leaseowners as we 

thought they e x i s t e d . I don't have the exact date t h a t I 

contacted Mesa Grande Resources, but during the phone con­

v e r s a t i o n w i t h Mr. Greg P h i l l i p s I was advised t h a t — t h a t 

Mesa Grande Resources had some partners i n the 75 percent 

ownership of the common lease t h a t we had w i t h — between 

Mesa Grande Resources and Dugan Production, Dugan Production 

owning the 25 percent. 

I asked Mr. P h i l l i p s i f we — t o provide 

me w i t h a l i s t of the people t h a t were h i s partners i n h i s 

75 percent i n t e r e s t and Mr. P h i l l i p s advised me t h a t he 

would take care of p r o v i d i n g t h a t n o t i c e i f I would provide 

him w i t h adequate copy t h a t he could make a d d i t i o n a l copies 

as necessary. 

Q Was i t your understanding then t h a t Mesa 

Grande Resources was representing these owners who derived 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

t h e i r i n t e r e s t through Mesa Grande? 

A I t — yes, i t was my understanding t h a t 

any approval or a u t h o r i z a t i o n t h a t was necessary from the 

partners t h a t Mesa Grande had would be secured through Mesa 

Grande's e f f o r t s and because I was a l i t t l e f a m i l i a r w i t h — 

w i t h the arrangements t h a t led t o Mesa Grande having a 75 

percent working i n t e r e s t i n t h i s lease, I f e l t i t was 

reasonable t h a t Mesa Grande take care of whatever side ar­

rangements they had i n t h e i r 75 percent ownership. 

Q I n other words, you believe t h a t Mesa 

Grande had sold t o i n v e s t o r s p a r t i c i p a t i o n s i n -- i n the --

i n the lease, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 

A Yeah, I — I d i d not r e a l l y begin t o — 

Q Or i n some other way --

A — t h e i r exact ownership. I t was my un­

derstanding t h a t they were i n v e s t o r s t h a t were l i n k e d t o 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r parcel of land. Now whether they a c t u a l l y 

owned an i n t e r e s t i n the lease or not, I d i d not make an 

attempt to understand t h e i r agreement. 

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Examiner, Mr. 

Greg P h i l l i p s i s here. May I have j u s t a moment t o t a l k t o 

him? 

MR. STOGNER;: You bet. Let's 

take about f i v e minutes. 

(Thereupon a recess was taken.) 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

27 

MR. STOGNER: What were we 

doing? 

MR. STOVALL: We were discus­

sing the r e s o l u t i o n t o a question and I t h i n k I've got a 

non-re s o l u t i o n t o the question t h a t we'd l i k e t o present t o 

the Examiner. 

MR. STOGNER: A l l r i g h t , then 

the hearing w i l l presume t o order. 

Mr. S t o v a l l ? 

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Examiner, i t 

appears t h a t there i s some discussion, we've had some d i s ­

cussion w i t h Mr. P h i l l i p s . He i s not going to be c a l l e d as 

a witness a t t h i s time. I t appears t h a t there i s p o s s i b l y a 

notice problem i n t h i s case w i t h respect t o the i n t e r e s t de­

r i v e d through Mesa Grande Resources, but I'd l i k e t o ask Mr. 

Corcoran a couple of questions to get i n t o the record and 

lead us t o where we need to be. 

RICHARD CORCORAN, 

being r e c a l l e d as a witness and remaining under oath, t e s t i ­

f i e d as f o l l o w s , t o - w i t : 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

Q Mr. Corcoran, back to the Mesa Grande i n -
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t e r e s t — I'm r e c a l l i n g Mr. Corcoran, excuse me, I f o r g o t I 

had Mr. Roe. Recall Mr. Corcoran, i f I may f o r the moment. 

MR. STOGNER: Please. 

Q Regarding the Mesa Grande i n t e r e s t s and 

the i n t e r e s t derived through Mesa Grande, you've i n d i c a t e d 

t h a t those i n t e r e s t s , people who derived t h e i r i n t e r e s t 

through Mesa Grande Resources d i d not receive n o t i c e , i s tha 

correct ? 

A That's c o r r e c t . 

Q And i n the course of your discussions, 

have you had any discussions w i t h Mesa Grande Resources w i t h 

respect t o t h i s acreage and the possible a c q u i s i t i o n of i t 

by Dugan Production? 

A Yes. We have on-going discussions regar­

ding the purchase or exchange of t h i s acreage w i t h — w i t h 

Mesa Grande. 

Q And i s i t uour b e l i e f or opinio n t h a t a 

deal might be consummated i n which Mesa Grande, and a l l the 

i n t e r e s t derived through Mesa Grande, might be acquired by 

Dugan Production and t h e r e f o r not be req u i r e d to be forc e 

pooled? 

A I t ' s p o s s i b l e , yes. 

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Examiner, we 

now have, i t appears, an a d d i t i o n a l n o t i c e problem and f o r 

t h a t reason I'm also going to reopen Case 9251 a f t e r we con-
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elude f o r the same r e s o l u t i o n , but inasmuch as we're already 

going to have a continuance i n t h i s case:, we are going to 

have t o make — give n o t i c e t o those i n t e r e s t s derived 

through Mesa Grande, i t appears. 

MR. STOGNER: Let's go o f f the 

record, S a l l y . 

(Thereupon a discussion was had o f f the record.) 

MR. STOVALL: To c l a r i f y the 

record, since we've been o f f f o r a few minutes and I'm some­

what d i s t r a c t e d , Mr. Corcorcan has been r e c a l l e d as a w i t ­

ness. I have no f u r t h e r questions on the r e c a l l of Mr. Cor­

coran a t t h i s time. 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. Pearce? 

MR. PEARCE: No questions, Mr. 

Eaminer. 

MR. STOGNER: Okay, I have no 

f u r t h e r questions of Mr. Corcoran a t t h i s time. 

MR. STOVALL: And now I ' l l r e ­

c a l l Mr. Roe, who i s — 

MR. STOGNER: Okay, l e t the r e ­

cord so r e f l e c t . Mr. Roe i s now r e c a l l e d . 
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JOHN ROE, 

being r e c a l l e d as a witness and remaining under oath, t e s t i ­

f i e d as f o l l o w s , t o - w i t : 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. STOVALL: 

Q Mr. Roe, would you please t u r n b r i e f l y to 

E x h i b i t s One and Two? Looking a t E x h i b i t Number One, we've 

i d e n t i f i e d the boundaries of the Gavilan Mancos O i l Pool and 

i d e n t i f i e d the boundaries of the proposed extension of t h a t 

pool by the nomenclature Case 9250, heard today. Are you 

f a m i l i a r , Mr. Roe, w i t h the pool r u l e s of the Gavilan Mancos 

O i l Pool? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q And what i s the appropriate spacing f o r a 

well d r i l l e d w i t h i n the Gavilan Mancos O i l Pool? 

A The Gavilan Mancos Pool Rules provide f o r 

640-acre spacing u n i t s . 

Q And i s there any p r o v i s i o n i n the Gavilan 

Mancos O i l Pool Rules making them a p p l i c a b l e to any w e l l s 

d r i l l e d outside the boundary of t h a t pool? 

A Rule One of the Gvilan Mancos Pool Rules 

s t i p u l a t e s t h a t any w e l l d r i l l e d or recompleted w i t h i n one 

mile of the boundary of the Gavilan Mancos Pool Rules w i l l 

operate under the Gavilan Mancos Pool Rules. 
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Q Mr. Roe, looking a t E x h i b i t Number Two, 

t h a t ' s the C-102 form, i s t h a t surveyed l o c a t i o n f o r the 

Bridge Com No. 1 Well a l e g a l l o c a t i o n under the r u l e s of 

the Gavilan Mancos O i l Pool? 

A Yes, i t i s . 

Q And i s i t your o p i n i o n t h a t t h i s pool 

w i l l -- or t h a t t h i s w e l l w i l l p r o p e r l y be an extension of 

the Gavilan Mancos O i l Pool as t h a t pool i s extended by Case 

9250? 

A Yes. 

Q Mr. Roe, i n Dugan's a p p l i c a t i o n they're 

requesting t h a t Dugan Production be designated the operator 

of the w e l l t o be d r i l l e d i n t h i s pool and would you b r i e f l y 

t e l l the Examiner why Dugan Production i s q u a l i f i e d , i n your 

o p i n i o n , t o operate a w e l l i n t h i s area? 

A Well, Dugan Production i s the l a r g e s t 

s i n g l e working i n t e r e s t owner w i t h i n Section 28 of Township 

26 North, Range 2 West. We have a t o t a l of 260 net acres, 

which represents a working i n t e r e s t of 40.625 percent. We 

are f a m i l i a r w i t h the operations i n t h i s area and have par­

t i c i p a t e d i n the m a j o r i t y of the p r i o r development of the 

Gavilan Mancos Pool from — since i t s discovery i n 1981. 

Q Mr. Roe, would you t u r n t o E x h i b i t Number 

Three, please? This e x h i b i t i s the — i t ' s been i d e n t i f i e d 

as the l e t t e r sent by Dugan Production to the various work-
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ing i n t e r e s t owners o f f e r i n g them an o p p o r t u n i t y t o p a r t i c i ­

pate i n the w e l l and there appears attached t o each of the 

two l e t t e r s t h e r e i n an A u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r Expenditure. 

Would you e x p l a i n those e x h i b i t s , those 

p a r t i c u l a r pages of E x h i b i t Number Three, please? 

A Yes, E x h i b i t Number Three includes two 

pages t h a t are what we c a l l an AFE, or A u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r 

Expenditure. The most recent AFE i s dated September 16th, 

1987, and represents our estimate of what i t would cost to 

d r i l l , complete, and equip f o r production a w e l l t o a depth 

of 8070 f e e t , which i s our proposed TD f o r t h i s w e l l . 

I t i s an amended cost estimate from an 

AFE t h a t was dated September — or J u l y 16th, which i s the 

l a s t page of the E x h i b i t Number Three. The primary 

d i f f e r e n c e between the two AFE's i s the f a c t t h a t we revised 

our p r o j e c t e d t o t a l depth from 8360, which was a depth 

adequate to evaluate the Dakota form a t i o n , t o 8070 f e e t , 

which w i l l be a depth adequate t o d r i l l through and complete 

and evaluate the Mancos form a t i o n . 

Q Mr. Roe, does t h i s -- do you b e l i e v e t h i s 

AFE dated, amended AFE dated September 16th, 1987, repre­

sents a reasonable estimated cost f o r a w e l l of t h i s depth 

i n t h i s area? 

A I t represents our best estimate based 

upon our recent experience, assuming a r e l a t i v e l y t r o u b l e -
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fr e e w e l l , yes. 

Q And would you ask the D i v i s i o n to approve 

t h i s AFE as a reasonable estimated w e l l cost f o r t h i s a p p l i ­

cation? 

A Yes, I would. 

Q I n your a p p l i c a t i o n , Dugan's a p p l i c a t i o n , 

Dugan has requested the D i v i s i o n t o include i n the order 

p r o v i s i o n s t h a t would allow the operator t o recover the 

actual costs of d r i l l i n g and completing the w e l l . You're 

asking t h a t those — are you asking t h e r e i n t h a t those 

costs be paid i n advance, estimated costs be paid i n advance 

by p a r t i e s not wishing to have t h e i r costs paid out of pro­

duction and t h a t they a c t u a l l y recover a c t u a l w e l l costs u-

pon completion of the w e l l and i n v o i c i n g ? I s t h a t your r e ­

quest? 

A Yes. For those p a r t i e s t h a t do not v o l ­

u n t a r i l y commit t h e i r i n t e r e s t p r i o r t o the e f f e c t i v e date 

of the pooling order, we would ask t h a t they pay i n advance, 

yes. 

Q And w i t h respect to those p a r t i e s who 

e l e c t t o pay t h e i r share — t h e i r share of the costs f o r the 

d r i l l i n g and completion of t h i s w e l l out of prod u c t i o n , your 

a p p l i c a t i o n i s requesting t h a t an a d d i t i o n a l penalty f a c t o r 

be recovered by the operator and t h a t t h a t penalty f a c t o r be 

200 percent, i s t h a t c o r r e c t ? 
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A Yes. 

Q Why do you b e l i e v e t h a t a 200 percent 

penalty f a c t o r i s reasonable? 

A Well, t h i s i s an area we have a s i g n i f i ­

cant amount of experience i n and there i s many problems t h a t 

can be encountered. We f e e l there's a very high r i s k i n 

d r i l l i n g and a f f e c t i n g a w e l l completion i n a d d i t i o n t o the 

f a c t of unknown there being r e s e r v o i r q u a l i t y rock at t h i s 

l o c a t i o n . 

I t ' s our b e l i e f t h a t the maximum permis­

s i b l e penalty should be authorized and i t ' s our understan­

ding t h a t t h a t i s 200 percent. 

Q Mr. Roe, given the knowledge t h a t t h i s 

matter i s going t o be continued u n t i l December 2nd, I be­

l i e v e , approximately t h a t timeframe, and i n c o n s i d e r a t i o n of 

operating c o n d i t i o n s i n the Gavilan area during t h i s season, 

do you see any need to request the e f f e c t i v e p eriod d u r i n g 

which the w e l l be — d r i l l i n g of the w e l l be commenced be 

extended f o r any reason? 

A Yes. This i s an area t h a t we would pre­

f e r to have our d r i l l i n g operations e i t h e r p r i o r t o w i n t e r 

settng i n or d r i l l e d d uring the w i n t e r only i f we have a 

very c o l d w i n t e r . So we would l i k e t o have the o p t i o n t o , 

i n the event road and weather c o n d i t i o n s would not allow us 

to d r i l l before w i n t e r sets i n , or i n the event we don't 
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have a hard enough wi n t e r t o give us a good freeze, we 

would l i k e the period w i t h which t h i s forced p o o l i n g i s ap­

p l i c a b l e , to be extended to beyond the normal n i n e t y days, 

t o June 1st of 1988. 

Q And, Mr. Roe, i s i t your i n t e n t by t h i s 

a p p l i c a t i o n t o force pool a l l p a r t i e s who have not manifes­

ted an i n t e n t to v o l u n t a r i l y j o i n i n the w e l l by the execu­

t i o n of both an A u t h o r i z a t i o n f o r Expenditure and an operat­

ing agreement? 

A Yes. 

Q Mr. Roe, would you please take a look now 

at E x h i b i t Number Six and i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the Commission? 

A Okay, E x h i b i t Number Six i s a reproduc­

t i o n of some i n f o r m a t i o n contained i n a survey by a f i r m by 

the name of Ernst and Whinney. The purpose of t h i s survey 

i s to provide i n d u s t r y , the o i l and gas i n d u s t r y , w i t h num­

bers t h a t are r e p r e s e n t a t i v e throughout the i n d u s t r y f o r 

reasonable or act u a l overhead costs f o r d r i l l i n g and 

operating a w e l l of v a r y i n g depths. 

Q And what does t h a t survey i n f o r m a t i o n 

show w i t h respect to reasonable costs f o r a w e l l of t h i s 

depth i n t h i s area? 

A Based upon survey r e s u l t s f o r the year 

1986, which i s the most c u r r e n t data t h a t we have a v a i l a b l e , 

the average overhead r a t e while the w e l l i s i n the d r i l i n g 
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phase, would be $4138 a month and the monthly charge dur i n g 

the producing phase would be $446 a month. 

Q And i s Dugan Production requesting t h a t 

the D i v i s i o n order an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e fee be es t a b l i s h e d f o r 

d r i l l i n g and f o r producing i n the forced p o o l i n g order? 

A Yes. Dugan Production has requested t h a t 

the overhead r a t e during the d r i l l i n g phase be set a t $4000 

per month and the overhead r a t e during the producing phase 

of the w e l l be set a t $400 per month. 

Q And i n your o p i n i o n i s t h i s amount 

reasonable? 

A Yes, i t i s reasonable and p o s s i b l y a l i t ­

t l e conservative based on the act u a l survey numbers. 

Q Mr. Roe, are you f a m i l i a r w i t h E x h i b i t s 

One through Six? Have they been prepared by you or under 

your s u p e r v i s i o n and do you have reason t o be co n f i d e n t and 

know of t h e i r accuracy? 

A Yes, the E x h i b i t s One through Six were 

prepared e i t h e r by myself, Mr. Corcoran, or under our super­

v i s i o n . 

MR. STOVALL: Move the admis­

sion of E x h i b i t s One through Six. 

MR. STOGNER: E x h i b i t s One 

through Six w i l l be admitted i n t o evidence at t h i s time. 

Q Mr. Roe, one — one f i n a l question, Mr. 
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Roe. Do you be l i e v e the g r a n t i n g of t h i s a p p l i c a t i o n would 

be i n the i n t e r e s t of conservation, the prevention of waste, 

and the p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s ? 

A Yes, I do. 

MR. STOVALL: Nothing f u r t h e r 

of Mr. Roe. 

MR. STOGNER: Thank you. Thank 

you, Mr. S t o v a l l . 

Mr. Pearce, your witness. 

MR. PEARCE: No questions of 

t h i s witness, Mr. Examiner. 

MR. STOGNER: I have no f u r t h e r 

questions of t h i s witness a t t h i s time, e i t h e r . 

Are there any other questions 

of Mr. Roe? 

He may be excused. 

Are there any c l o s i n g s t a t e ­

ments at t h i s time? 

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Examiner, f o r 

the sake of expediency, I would l i k e t o adopt my c l o s i n g 

statement made i n Case 9251 w i t h the exception of my request 

f o r an expedited order. I n view of the n o t i c e problems t h a t 

we have i n t h i s , I'm not going t o ask f o r an expedited o r ­

der . 

We do request a l l other matters 
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as set f o r t h i n t h a t c l o s i n g statement and I ask t h a t i t be 

adopted i n t h i s case. 

MR. STOGNER: Okay, l e t the r e ­

cord show t h a t the c l o s i n g statement of Mr. S t o v a l l i n Case 

9251 w i l l be incorporated i n Case 9252. 

Mr. Pearce? 

MR. PEARCE: Mr. Examiner, i t 

i s c l e a r from t h i s record there are some t i t l e i n t e r e s t s i n 

t h i s property under c o n s i d e r a t i o n , a t l e a s t i n Case 9252, 

which were missed i n the t i t l e search. Those i n t e r e s t own­

ers have not receivd t e re q u i r e d n o t i c e of t h i s hearing nor 

have they been approached w i t h requests to v o l u n t a r i l y par­

t i c i p a t e i n t h i s w e l l ; however, my c l i e n t i n t h i s matter, 

Amoco Production Company, as r e c e n t l y been contacted, as 

t h i s record shows. We have been assured t h a t we w i l l be 

provided w i t h an AFE and a proposed operating agreement 

covering the w e l l to be d r i l l e d on t h i s acreage. 

Amoco hopes t h a t acceptable 

terms can be agreed to by the p a r t i e s so t h a t i t can volun­

t a r i l y j o i n i n a w e l l on t h i s p r o p erty. 

Amoco i s not at t h i s time pre­

pared to f u l l y p a r t i c i p a t e i n t h i s hearing but recognizes 

t h a t the operator has a desire to proceed e x p e d i t i o u s l y . 

While we, I t h i n k , disagree w i t h Mr. S t o v a l l * s p o s i t i o n t h a t 

our appearance a t t h i s hearing waives any r i g h t we might 
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have to o b j e c t t o the conduct of t h i s hearing because of 

f a i l u r e t o give us n o t i c e , and f a i l u r e t o allow us an oppor­

t u n i t y t o v o l u n t a r i l y p a r t i c i p a t e , our o b j e c t i o n s w i t h r e ­

gard t o those matters, I b e l i e v e , w i l l be s a t i s f a c t o r i l y r e ­

solved one way or another before the continued hearing of 

t h i s case. 

On t h a t b asis, we a n t i c i p a t e 

e i t h e r p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n t h a t continued hearing or having our 

problems w i t h regard t o t h i s acreage resolved p r i o r t o t h a t 

time. 

MR. STOGNER: Thank you, Mr. 

Pearce. 

MR. STOVALL: Mr. Examiner, i f 

I may o f f e r , Mr. Greg P h i l l i p s has not entered an appear­

ance, or Mesa Grande has not entered an appearance but Mr. 

Greg P h i l l i p s i s here and has i n d i c a t e d to me t h a t he would 

l i k e t o make a statement on behalf of Mesa Grande. I don't 

know i f he s t i l l wishes t o do so. 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. Pearce, do 

you have any objections? 

MR. PEARCE: None, Mr. Exam­

ine r . 

MR. STOGNER: Mr. P h i l l i p s , do 

you wish to have a statement a t t h i s time. 

MR. PHILLIPS: I , given the 
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continuance of the case, don't f e e l l i k e a statement i s 

necessary. 

MR. STOGNER: Okay, thank you. 

Anything f u r t h e r i n t h i s case 

today? 

This case w i l l be continued t o 

the Examiner Hearing scheduled f o r December 2nd, 1987, to be 

held here i n t h i s room, at which time t h a t should give ade­

quate timeframe f o r a l l p a r t i e s concerned t o t r y and reach 

v o l u n t a r y agreement and f o r adequate n o t i c e to be given t o 

those p a r t i e s who have not received the same. 

(Hearing concluded.) 
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